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The Dorsey Sheds are located on part of the 250-acre home farm of Richard H. Griffith (Jr.) called Pleasant Retreat, purchased in 
1832 from Charles A. Warfield. The frame equipment shed and hay shed, historically part of a tenant complex, is most likely 
associated with the later ownership of daughter Maud (Griffith) Dorsey, representing the final decades of the nearly 120-year 
ownership of the Griffith/Dorsey family. The farm was sold out of the family in 1950. The later, metal barn likely dates to the 
1970s ownership of the Middletons. 

The Dorsey Sheds are in very dilapidated condition and are no longer associated with the Howard tenant farm house (demolished). 
They therefore lack physical and historic integrity and are not considered eligible for the National Register under Criteria A or C. 
They are not associated with the life or work of a significant individual in local, state or national history and are therefore not 
considered eligible under NR Criterion B. Criterion D was not evaluated. 
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Montgomery County, Maryland, carved from the southern half of Frederick County in 1776, was historically associated with the 
Southern Maryland region by its agricultural production of tobacco and heavy reliance on enslaved labor. Census figures for the 
year 1800 showed that nearly 42 percent of the population of Montgomery County was enslaved at that time (John Milner Assoc., 
"Josiah Henson HSR," 2008, p. 3). Slavery declined in Maryland through the following decades, while the population of tree 
blacks increased through manumissions and tree births. At the same time farm production was shifting from primarily tobacco to a 
more generalized rotation of grains, with wheat as the primary cash crop. 

Richard H. Griffith (Sr.) was a farmer in Montgomery County as early as 1820 with nine slaves in his workforce (1820 census). In 
1823 he purchased two tracts totalling 204 acres adjoining the Patuxent River from Orlando Griffith (Mont. Co. (MC) Deed Book 
(DB) W, p. 51 1 and ref. in MC DB JGH 4, p. 446, located on today's Howard Chapel Rd. and incorrectly identified as the 
"William Belt House" in M:23-1 O; see M:23- I 57 "King Barns"). Then in I 832, Richard, his brothers Jefferson and Israel, and 
brother-in-law Jeffrey P.T. Magruder, purchased the larger tract known as Pleasant Retreat, from Charles Warfield (MD State 
Archive, Montgomery Co. Patented Certificate 353, MSA S 1202-442; patented by Warfield in 1815). While Israel and Jefferson 
Griffith, and Jeffrey Magruder made their fortunes as merchandizers in Baltimore, Richard H. Griffith worked the land. In the 
meantime, Richard H. Griffith (Jr.) was born in 1827, and by 1850, was living in Baltimore with his new wife Susan's family. 
Young Griffith (age 23) was also a merchant, trading in tobacco (Archives of MD, Baltimore Wholesale Business Directory and 
Business Circular for the Year 1852, Vol. 527, p. 196). 

By 1860, most Maryland slave owners were well-aware that the institution of slavery was on its way out as an economically viable 
labor system. Still, in I 850, Richard Griffith Sr. listed nine slaves in his household, including one adult woman and seven children 
ages 15 and younger (1850 slave census). There is no record of manumissions by Richard H. Griffith (Sr.), who by 1860 was 73 
years old. Griffith's neighbors Samuel R. and Sarah Gaither freed their slaves, a family by the name of Howard, as they reached 
the legal age for manumission in Maryland. George Howard was treed in 1851 at the age of 36 (MC DB STS 5, p.282, 1851 trom 
Sarah Gaither; the family lore says that he saved the cost of his freedom by selling produce from a garden plot given to him by his 
master Samuel, see Coleman). In 1853, Harriet Howard was treed at the age of 35 (MC DB JGH 2, p. 425, I 853 from Samuel R. 
Gaither; the story being that George paid the cost of her treedom). Finally in I 860, Harriet purchased their four children still 
enslaved on the Gaither farm (MC DB JGH 8, p. 36; the children would remain enslaved to their mother until they reached the 
legal age required). When [Enoch] George Howard bought the Gaither farm in 1862, they became Richard H. Griffith ' s immediate 
neighbor. Both families prospered on the fertile Patuxent River landscape. 

In 1855, it appears that Richard H. Griffith Jr's marriage to Susan was ending. In an apparent divorce settlement (not directly 
stated as such), his father conveyed the 204-acre farm (purchased in 1823 trom Orlando Griffith) in Trust to Jeffrey Magruder, "for 
the sole and separate use of Susan M. Griffith ... shall not be ... subject to the disposal, power and control of her present or any 
future husband ... during her lifetime," and at her death, if she had not sold or devised it in a will, MC DB JGH 4, p. 446; see M:23-
157, "King Barns"). In 1867, Richard Griffith Jr. remarried to the young widow Eliza Palmer Towner, and by I 870 they had two 
children in addition to one child each from their previous marriages (U.S. Census). 

In 1874, Griffith (Jr.) provided for his wife and the children of their marriage by conveying to her "for life" the 250-acre farm he 
inherited from his father, Pleasant Retreat, along with all of the personal property on the farm (MC DB EBP 12, p. 47). Richard 
and Eliza Griffith eventually had five daughters, Cleora, Eliza, Ellen, Maud, and Lillie (1880 Census). Following the death of their 
mother about 1890, Maud (Griffith) Dorsey purchased the farm from her siblings in 1897 (MC DB JA 60, p. 14). 

As early as 1908 the USGS Rockville Quadrangle map indicated a building at the location of the subject trame shed (prior to 1908 
the USGS maps did not show buildings in general). The earliest available aerial photograph, 1957 (www.historicaeriaJs.com/), 
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shows a house with several additions (no longer standingO, the subject frame shed, and two other shed/barns no longer standing. 

Maud and her husband Stephen Boone Dorsey occupied and worked their 250-acre "General Farm" at least through 1940. They 
never had children. Perhaps to aid in the eventual transfer of the property, in 1941 , the Dorseys conveyed the farm through 
Charles Orme to Maud Dorsey and Dorothy Washington (of unknown relation), then in California (MC DB 845, p. 3). In 1950, 
the farm was sold out of the Dorsey family by Dorothy (Washington) Seal to Warren and Anna Tydings (MC DB 1336, p. 427). 

The Tydings' sold the 250-acre tract to Thomas and Mary Virginia Middleton the following year (MC DB 1510, p. 280). The 
Middleton's purchased the adjoining 200-acre Howard farm in 1960 and in 1969 began to sell smaller parcels of the land to the 
Maryland Department of Forests and Parks (MDFP) as the state began developing the Patuxent River State Park. In 1986, after 
demolishing the house and several barns and adding the metal shed, the Middleton's sold the subject 46.7-acre parcel to MDFP 
(MC DB 7634, p. 100). 
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Capsule Summary 
Dorsey Sheds 
MIHP #M:23-156 
Off Damascus Road between Howard Chapel Rd. and Hipsley Mill Rd. 
Brookeville vicinity, Montgomery Co., Maryland 
Date: 1920s 

Description Summary 

The Dorsey sheds, also known by the DNR name as the Freeman Barns, are surrounded by 

farmland, almost a mile north of Damascus Road (MD 650), and a mile west of Howard Chapel 

Road in Patuxent River State Park near its southern boundary in Montgomery County. The two-

part wooden shed consists of a three bay open fronted equipment shed forming the north section, 

the south section is a partially collapsed one story wood crop barn with open front entrance bays 

installed later. It dates from the early 20th century, probably the 1920s. An adjacent metal 

equipment shed likely dates from the 1970s. A house and another shed/barn on the property are 

no longer standing. 

Significance Summary 

The Dorsey Sheds are located on part of the 250-acre home farm of Richard H. Griffith (Jr.) 

called Pleasant Retreat, purchased in 1832 from Charles A. Warfield. The frame equipment shed 

and hay shed, historically part of a tenant complex, is most likely associated with the later 

ownership of daughter Maud (Griffith) Dorsey, representing the final decades of the nearly 120-

year ownership of the Griffith/Dorsey family . The farm was sold out of the family in 1950. The 

later, metal barn likely dates to the 1970s ownership of the Middletons. (See DOE for NR 

Criteria evaluation) 
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1. Name of Property (indicate preferred name) 

historic Dorsey Sheds (preferred) 

other Freemen Barns; Pleasant Retreat 

2. Location 
street and number off Damascus Rd. btw Howard Chapel Rd. and Hipsley Mill Rd. 

city, town Brookeville 

county Montgomery 

3. Owner of Property (give names and mailing addresses of all owners) 

name Maryland Department of Natural Resources 

street and number 580 Taylor Ave. 

city, town Annapolis state MD 

4. Location of Legal Description 

Inventory No. M:23-l56 

not for publication 

K._ vicinity 

telephone 

zip code 21401 

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Montgomery County Courthouse tax map and parcel Map HW32, P. 442 

city, town Rockville liber 7634 folio 100 

5. Primary Location of Additional Data 
___ Contributing Resource in National Register District 
___ Contributing Resource in Local Historic District 
___ Determined Eligible for the National Register/Maryland Register 
___ Determined Ineligible for the National Register/Maryland Register 
___ Recorded by HABS/HAER 
___ Historic Structure Report or Research Report at MHT 
___ Other:. ___________ _ 

6. Classification 

Category 
__ district 
_x _building(s) 
__ structure 
__ site 
__ object 

Ownership 
_x_public 
__ private 

both 

Current Function 
__ agriculture __ landscape 
__ commerce/trade __ recreation/culture 
__ defense __ religion 
__ domestic 
__ education 
__ funerary 
__ government 
__ health care 
__ industry 

__ social 
__ transportation 
__ work in progress 
__ unknown 
_x _vacant/not in use 
__ other: 

Resource Count 
Contributing 

I 
Noncontributing 

I buildings 
sites ----

---- structures 
____ objects 

--"----- Total 

Number of Contributing Resources 
previously listed in the Inventory 

0 



7. Description Inventory No. M:23-156 

Condition 

excellent 2L_ deteriorated 
_good 2L_ ruins 

fair altered 

Prepare both a one paragraph summary and a comprehensive description of the resource and its various elements as it 
exists today. 

Summary 

The Dorsey sheds, also known by the DNR name as the Freeman Barns, are surrounded by 
farmland, almost a mile north of Damascus Road (MD 650), and a mile west of Howard Chapel 
Road in Patuxent River State Park near its southern boundary in Montgomery County. The two­
part wooden shed consists of a three bay open fronted equipment shed forming the north section, 
the south section is a partially collapsed one story wood crop barn with open front entrance bays 
installed later. It dates from the early 20th century, probably the 1920s. An adjacent metal 
equipment shed likely dates from the 1970s. A house and another shed/barn on the property are 
no longer standing. 

Physical Description 

The Dorsey sheds, also known by the DNR name as the Freeman Barns, are surrounded by 
farmland, almost a mile north of Damascus Road (MD 650), and a mile west of Howard Chapel 
Road in Patuxent River State Park near its southern boundary in Montgomery County. A deeply 
rutted dirt road leads to the property from Damascus Road. The site is on high ground with 
broad vistas of farmland and some woods in all directions. Just south of the buildings a major 
power line runs east-west across the landscape. 

Although the property once contained a large house and another barn or agricultural building, 
now all that remains is a two-part wooden equipment shed/crop barn and a metal equipment shed 
on a concrete slab. The wooden sheds appear date from the early 20th century, perhaps the 
1920s. They are in very deteriorated condition and could not be examined closely on the interior 
due to dangerous structural instability. The metal equipment shed likely dates from the 1970s. 
A rectangular wood framed addition is attached to the south end of the metal building. 

The wooden sheds stand on the west side of the access road, opposite the metal shed on the east 
side. Older property plats and aerial photographs show a third barn or shed to the north of the 
current wooden shed and a large L-shaped house to the northeast of the metal shed. The site of 
the house today is marked by a clump of trees. A 1957 aerial photograph shows a wooden shed 
in the location of the current metal one, the house and the additional barn or shed. The 1986 plat 
drawing shows the current metal equipment shed, the current wooden sheds and the third barn or 
shed. The house is not present. 

The two-part wooden shed consists of a three bay open fronted equipment shed forming the 
north section, the south section is a partially collapsed one story wood crop barn with open front 
entrance bays installed later. Both buildings, which are attached have shed roofs sloping down 
to the west, with the open bays on the east side. A short shed roof shelters the entrances along 
the east side. The buildings are framed with circular sawn square posts and beams and covered 
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with vertical board siding. Portions of the east wall of the southern section have board and 
batten siding. The roofing material is channel drain sheet metal over earlier asphalt shingles. 



8. Significance Inventory No. M:23-1 56 

Period Areas of Significance Check and justify below 

1600-1699 
1700-1799 
1800-1899 

X agriculture 
_ archeology 

architecture 

economics 
education 

_ engineering 
entertainmenU 

recreation 

health/medicine _ performing arts 
_ industry _ philosophy 

invention _ politics/government 
x 1900-1999 

2000-

Specific dates 

art 
commerce 
communications 

_ community planning 
conservation 

none known 

Construction dates 1920s 

Evaluation for: 

___ National Register 

_ ethnic heritage 
_ exploration/ 

settlement 

_ landscape architecture _ religion 
law science 
literature _ social history 

_ maritime history _ transportation 
_ military other: 

Architect/Builder unknown 

____ Maryland Register X not evaluated 

Prepare a one-paragraph summary statement of significance addressing applicable criteria , followed by a narrative discussion of the 
history of the resource and its context. (For compliance projects, complete evaluation on a DOE Form - see manual.) 

Summary Statement of Significance 

The Dorsey Sheds are located on part of the 250-acre home farm of Richard H. Griffith (Jr.) 
called Pleasant Retreat, purchased in 1832 from Charles A. Warfield. The frame equipment shed 
and hay shed, historically part of a tenant complex, is most likely associated with the later 
ownership of daughter Maud (Griffith) Dorsey, representing the final decades of the nearly 120-
year ownership of the Griffith/Dorsey family. The farm was sold out of the family in 1950. The 
later, metal barn likely dates to the 1970s ownership of the Middletons. (See DOE for NR 
Criteria evaluation) 

History and Context 

Montgomery County, Maryland, carved from the southern half of Frederick County in 1776, was 
historically associated with the Southern Maryland region by its agricultural production of 
tobacco and heavy reliance on enslaved labor. Census figures for the year 1800 showed that 
nearly 42 percent of the population of Montgomery County was enslaved at that time. 1 Slavery 
declined in Maryland through the following decades, while the population of free blacks 
increased through manumissions and free births. At the same time farm production was shifting 
from primarily tobacco to a more generalized rotation of grains, with wheat as the primary cash 
crop. 

Richard H. Griffith (Sr.) was a farmer in Montgomery County as early as 1820 with nine slaves 
in his workforce. 2 In 1823 he purchased two tracts totalling 204 acres adjoining the Patuxent 
River from Orlando Griffith.3 Then in 1832, Richard, his brothers Jefferson and Israel, and 
brother-in-law Jeffrey P.T. Magruder, purchased the larger tract known as Pleasant Retreat, from 
Charles Warfield.4 While Israel and Jefferson Griffith, and Jeffrey Magruder made their fortunes 
as merchandizers in Baltimore, Richard H. Griffith worked the land. In the meantime, Richard 
H. Griffith (Jr.) was born in 1827, and by 1850, was living in Baltimore with his new wife 
Susan's family. Young Griffith (age 23) was also a merchant, trading in tobacco.5 
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By 1860, most Maryland slave owners were well-aware that the institution of slavery was on its 
way out as an economically viable labor system. Still, in 1850, Richard Griffith Sr. listed nine 
slaves in his household, including one adult woman and seven children ages 15 and younger 
(1850 slave census). There is no record of manumissions by Richard H. Griffith (Sr.), who by 
1860 was 73 years old. Griffith's neighbors Samuel R. and Sarah Gaither freed their slaves, a 
family by the name of Howard, as they reached the legal age for manumission in Maryland. 
George Howard was freed in 1851 at the age of 36. In 1853, Harriet Howard was freed at the 
age of 35. Finally in 1860, Harriet purchased their four children still enslaved on the Gaither 
farm. 6 When [Enoch] George Howard bought the Gaither farm in 1862, they became Richard H. 
Griffith's immediate neighbor. Both families prospered on the fertile Patuxent River landscape. 

In 1855, it appears that Richard H. Griffith Jr's marriage to Susan was ending. In an apparent 
divorce settlement (not directly stated as such), his father conveyed the 204-acre farm (purchased 
in 1823 from Orlando Griffith) in Trust to Jeffrey Magruder, "for the sole and separate use of 
Susan M. Griffith ... shall not be ... subject to the disposal, power and control of her present or any 
future husband ... during her lifetime," and at her death, if she had not sold or devised it in a will, 
would revert to Richard Griffith Jr. 7 In 1867, Richard Griffith Jr. remarried to the young widow 
Eliza Palmer Towner, and by 1870 they had two children in addition to one child each from their 

. . 8 
prev10us marnages. 

In 1874, Griffith (Jr.) provided for his wife and the children of their marriage by conveying to 
her "for life" the 250-acre farm he inherited from his father, Pleasant Retreat, along with all of 
the personal property on the farm.9 Richard and Eliza Griffith eventually had five daughters, 
Cleora, Eliza, Ellen, Maud, and Lillie.1° Following the death of their mother about 1890, Maud 
(Griffith) Dorsey purchased the farm from her siblings in 1897. 11 

As early as 1908 the USGS Rockville Quadrangle map indicated a building at the location of the 
subject frame shed (prior to 1908 the USGS maps did not show buildings in general). The 
earliest available aerial photograph, 1957 (www.historicaerials.co!!!L), shows a house with 
several additions (no longer standingO, the subject frame shed, and two other shed/barns no 
longer standing. 

Maud and her husband Stephen Boone Dorsey occupied and worked their 250-acre "General 
Farm" at least through 1940. They never had children. Perhaps to aid in the eventual transfer of 
the property, in 1941, the Dorseys conveyed the farm through Charles Orme to Maud Dorsey and 
Dorothy Washington (of unknown relation), then in Califomia. 12 In 1950, the farm was sold out 
of the Dorsey family by Dorothy (Washington) Seal to Warren and Anna Tydings. 13 
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The T,('dings' sold the 250-acre tract to Thomas and Mary Virginia Middleton the following 
year. 1 The Middleton's purchased the adjoining 200-acre Howard farm in 1960 and in 1969 
began to sell smaller parcels of the land to the Maryland Department of Forests and Parks 
(MDFP) as the state began developing the Patuxent River State Park. In 1986, after demolishing 
the house and several barns and adding the metal shed, the Middleton's sold the subject 46.7-
acre parcel to MDFP. 15 



9. Major Bibliographical References 

See continuation sheet 

10. Geographical Data 

Acreage of surveyed property 
Acreage of historical setting 
Quadrangle name 

approx. 46.7 acre 
approx. 5 acres 
Sandy Spring 

Verbal boundary description and justification 

Inventory No. M:23-156 

Quadrangle scale: 1 :24 000 

The Howard Sheds survey boundary follows the 46.7-acre parcel boundary found in MC DB 
7634, p. 104 (see attached plat as Boundary Map). 

The surveyed boundaryfollows the legal parcel outline and is inclusive of the historical setting 
of the Dorsey farmstead. 

11. Form Prepared by 

name/title 

organization 

street & number 

city or town 

Paula Reed, PhD, architectural historian; Edie Wallace, M.A., historian 

Paula S. Reed & Associates, Inc. date Sept. 8, 2014 

1 W. Franklin St., Suite 201 telephone 301-739-2070 

Hagerstown state Maryland 

The Maryland Inventory of Historic Properties was officially created by an Act of the Maryland Legislature to be 
found in the Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41 , Section 181 KA, 
1974 supplement. 

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and record purposes only 
and do not constitute any infringement of individual property rights. 

return to: Maryland Historical Trust 
DHCD/DHCP 
100 Community Place 
Crownsville, MD 21032-2023 
410-514-7600 
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1 John Milner Assoc., "Josiah Henson HSR," 2008, p. 3. 
2 1820 U.S. Population Census. 
3 Mont. Co. (MC) Deed Book (DB) W, p. 511 and ref. in MC DB JGH 4, p. 446, located on today's Howard 
Chapel Rd. and incorrectly identified as the "William Belt House" in M:23-10; see M:23-157 "King Barns." 
4 MD State Archive, Montgomery Co. Patented Certificate 353, MSA S1202-442. It was surveyed for over 700 
acres, patented by Charles Warfield in 1815. 
5 Archives of MD, Baltimore Wholesale Business Directory and Business Circular for the Year 1852, Vol. 527, 

r· 196. 
MC DB STS 5, p.282, 1851 from Sarah Gaither; the family lore says that he saved the cost of his freedom by 

selling produce from a garden plot given to him by his master Samuel; MC DB JGH 2, p. 425, 1853 from 
Samuel R. Gaither; the story being that George paid the cost of her freedom; MC DB JGH 8, p. 36; the children 
would remain enslaved to their mother until they reached the legal age required. See Coleman and Lewis, 
Montgomery Co. Pictorial History, 1984, cited in M:23-08 "Gaither-Howard Houses." 
7 MC DB JGH 4, p. 446; see M:23-157, "King Barns." 
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Digital Photograph Log 
Page 1of2 

Name of Property: 

City or Vicinity: 
County, State: 
Name of Photographer: 
Date of Photographs: 
Location of Original Files: 
Number of Photographs: 

Dorsey Sheds 
MIHP #M:23-156 
Brookeville 
Montgomery County, MD 
Edie Wallace 
August 2014 
MDSHPO 
15 

HP 100 Gray Photo Cartridge 
HP Premium Plus Photo Paper 

M.23-156 2014-08-22 01 - -
Overall view of frame and metal sheds, view N. 

M.23-156 2014-08-22 02 - -
Overall view of frame and metal sheds, view S. 

M.23-156 2014-08-22 03 - -
Frame sheds, east elevation, view W. 

M.23-156 2014-08-22 04 - -
Frame sheds, east elevation, view SW. 

M.23-156 2014-08-22 05 - -
Frame sheds, east elevation condition detail, view SW. 

M.23-156 2014-08-22 06 - -
Frame sheds, east elevation detail, view W. 

M.23-156 2014-08-22 07 - -
Frame sheds, south elevation, view NW. 

M.23-156 2014-08-22 08 - -
Frame sheds, north and west elevations, view SE. 

M.23-156 2014-08-22 09 - -
Frame sheds, interior detail, view W. 

M.23-156 2014-08-22 10 - -
Frame sheds, interior detail, view toward NW comer. 

1 



Dorsey Sheds, MIHP #M:23-156 
Digital Photograph Log 
Page 2of2 

M.23-156 2014-08-22 11 - -
Metal shed, north and west elevations, view SE. 

M.23-156 2014-08-22 12 - -
Metal shed, south and east elevations, view NW. 

M.23-156 2014-08-22 13 - -
Metal shed, interior, view N. 

M.23-156 2014-08-22 14 - -
House site (demolished), view NE from lane. 

M.23-156 2014-08-22 15 - -
Setting, view SW from west side of frame sheds. 
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